

If calling, please ask for Democratic Services

Environment Committee

Thursday 11 June 2020, 9.30am Via Zoom meeting

Members

Cr Gaylor (Chair)	Cr Connelly (Deputy Chair)
Cr Blakeley	Cr Brash
Cr Hughes	Cr Kirk-Burnnand
Cr Laban	Cr Lamason
Cr Lee	Cr Nash
Cr Ponter	Cr Staples
Cr van Lier	
Barbie Barton	

Recommendations in reports are not to be construed as Council policy until adopted by Council

Environment Committee

Thursday 11 June 2020, 9.30am Via Zoom meeting

Public Business

No.	Item	Report	Page
1.	Apologies		
2.	Conflict of interest declarations		
3.	Public participation		
4.	Confirmation of the Public minutes of the Environment meeting of 13 February 2020	20.49	3
5.	Update on progress of action items from previous meetings	20.86	7
6.	Te Whanganui a Tara Whaitua update	Oral report	
7.	Paekakariki Surf Live Saving Club lease renewal	Oral report	



Please note these minutes remain unconfirmed until the Environment Committee meeting on 11 June 2020.

Report 20.23

Public minutes of the Environment Committee meeting on Thursday 13 February 2020

Council Chamber, Greater Wellington Regional Council Level 2, 15 Walter Street, Te Aro, Wellington at 9.30am.

Members Present

Councillor Gaylor (Chair) Councillor Connelly (Deputy Chair) Councillor Blakeley Councillor Brash Councillor Hughes Councillor Kirk-Burnnand Councillor Laban Councillor Lamason Councillor Lamason Councillor Lee Councillor Nash Councillor Ponter (until 11.34am) Councillor Staples Councillor van Lier

Public Business

1 Karakia timatanga

The Committee Chair invited Cr Connelly to open the meeting at 9.30am with a karakia timatangi – Ngau mai e ngā hua.

2 Apologies

There were no apologies.

3 Declarations of conflicts of interest

There were no declarations of conflicts of interest.

4 Public participation

Eugene Doyle, Owhiro Bay Residents' Association, spoke to item 5 – Recreational water quality in the Wellingon Region, specifically on pollution in Owhiro Bay.

Strategy, policy or major Issues

The Committee accorded priority to agenda item 5 – Recreational water quality in the Wellington Region.

5 Recreational water quality in the Wellington Region – oral item

Shaun Andrewartha, Manager, Environmental Regulation, and Alastair Smaill, Programme Lead, Urban Water, gave a presentation to the Committee.

Mr Andrewartha discussed Greater Wellington's role as a regulatory authority. Greater Wellington authorises the discharge of contaminants into the environment through the consenting process. It is also in charge of compliance, monitoring and enforcement of the rules and policies.

Mr Andrewartha also outlined the role of territorial authorities. Territorial authorities are ultimately responsible for the drinking water, stormwater and wastewater network (the three waters) by ensuring consents are obtained and complied with. Territorial authorities also provide for and maintain the infrastructure.

Wellington Water Limited manages the three waters network on behalf of some of the territorial authorities in the Wellington Region (Hutt City Council, Porirua City Council, South Wairarapa District Council, Upper Hutt City Council, Wellington City Council). Wellington Water Limited is responsible for the management of the network, applying for and complying with conditions of consent.

The proposed Natural Resources Plan (PNRP) introduced a two stage consenting regime for the discharging of stormwater from territorial authority stormwater networks. This regime is consistent with the PNRP intent, which recognises that resources are interconnected and reliant upon one another. Monitoring during phase one of the consenting regime informs the development of a prioritised programme for improvements in the Stormwater Management Strategy required in stage two.

Consents do not set a contaminant limit, however, the acute human health effects are managed and ongoing monitoring allows for a better understanding of the effects of the discharge. Wellington Water Limited must investigate causes and action any improvements to ensure any human health issues are identified and remedied, and communicate the public of any actual and potential risks associated with stormwater discharges.

Mark Kinvig, General Manager, Network Strategy and Planning, Ben Fountain, Chief Advisor, Stormwater, and Steve Hutchison, Chief Advisor, Wastewater, from Wellington Water Limited, updated the Committee on recent network issues.

Mr Hutchison spoke to the Committee on the Dixon Street adit collapse on 20 December 2019. This sent six and a half million litres of waste water a day into Wellington Harbour. A bypass was created to send the wastewater around the blockage. A disused 1890s pipe was recommissioned. Taranaki Whānui placed a rāhui on Wellington Harbour.

The Mt Albert tunnel sludge pipelines were installed in the 1990s. It was built as dual pipeline system that was meant to account for failures and maintenance. Both failed. The terrain of the pipe makes it difficult to repair. Trucks have been transporting the sludge from the Moa Point Treatment Plant to the Southern Landfill.

Mr Fountain spoke to the Committee on contamination in Wellington waterways. Wellington Water Limited have placed permanent warning signs at the mouth of the stream, but the same warnings could apply to most of the city's waterways. Stormwater, which runs into the Owhiro Stream, comes from a number of different sources. This makes it difficult to identity the source of contamination.

Mr Fountain advised that Wellington Water's protocols were followed when reopening the beach. He advised that contamination levels had returned to normal levels before the beach was re-opened. He acknowledged that Wellington Water's communication could have been better.

Moved: Cr Lee / Cr Gaylor

That the Committee requests officers report to the next Environment Committee meeting on:

- a Options for a water quality monitoring regime at Owhiro Stream/Bay, with the report to identify the likely sources of contamination
- b The feasibility on effective 'real-time' public notification system for recreational users of Owhiro Bay and other recreational coastal areas in the Wellingon Region,

noting that this is an opportunity for all stakeholders to work together to achieve a desired environmental outcome.

The motion was carried.

Noted: The Committee requested that the framework for stormwater consents be made available on Greater Wellington's website.

Noted: The Committee requested a report on what we monitor and why, including any timelines for monitoring actions required through phase 1 stormwater consenting.

6 Strategic priorities for the Environment Committee – Report 20.20

Tracy Plane, Manager, Strategic and Corporate Planning, spoke to the report.

Moved: Cr Gaylor / Cr Staples

That the Committee:

- 1 Notes the existing informal 'strategic framework' outlined in the Committee's terms of reference; existing strategies and plans; and emerging direction from a range of developing strategic documents and feedback from the Whaitua committees.
- 2 Considers the proposed strategic priorities for the 2019-22 triennium (paragraph 32) at a March 2020 workshop.

The motion was **carried**.

7 Regional Biodiversity Framework – report 20.25 [for information]

Ali Caddy, Team Lead, Biodiversity Strategy and Advice spoke to the report.

The Co-chairs of the Biodiversity Collaborative Working Group (the Group), Sharlene Maoate-Davis and Quentin Duthie, introduced themselves. They spoke on the Group's journey. They discussed their diverse relationships, representing the views of communities and different interest groups and how important it was for them to take some time to get to know each other and make connections. The Mātauranga Māori approach is an integral part of the Group and informs and enriches their decisions.

Noted: Councillors requested that the schedule of meetings for the Biodiversity Collaborative Working Group be circulated.

Noted: Cr Ponter left the meeting at 11.34am during questions on the above item and did not return to the meeting.

8 Karakia whakamutunga

The Committee Chair requested Cr Connelly close the meeting with a karakia whakamutunga – Kia hora te marino.

The public part of the meeting closed at 11.40am.

Councillor P Gaylor (Chair)

Date:

Environment Committee 11 June 2020 Report 20.86



For Information

UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF ACTION ITEMS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS – JUNE 2020

Te take mō te pūrongo Purpose

1. To update the Environment Committee (the Committee) on the progress of action items arising from the Committee meeting on 13 February 2020.

Te horopaki Context

 Items raised at the Committee's last meeting, which require action by officers, are listed in the table 'Action items from the 13 February 2020 Environment Committee meeting' (Attachment 1). For all action items, we state the current status and provide a brief comment on progress to date.

Ngā hua ahumoni Financial implications

3. There are no financial implications from this report, but there may be implications arising from the actions listed.

Ngā tūāoma e whai ake nei Next steps

4. We will remove completed items from the action items table for the next report. Items not completed will continue to be progressed. Any new items will be added, following this Committee meeting, and circulated to the relevant business group/s for action.

Ngā āpitihanga Attachment

Number	Title	
1	Action items from the 13 February 2020 Environment Committee meeting	

Ngā kaiwaitohu Signatories

Writers	Al Cross – Kaiwhakahaere Matua mo te Taiao/General Manager Environment Management	
	Wayne O'Donnell – Kaiwhakahaere Matua Whaitua/General Manager Catchment Management	
	Luke Troy – Kaiwhakahaere Matua Rautaki/General Manager Strategy	

He whakarāpopoto i ngā huritaonga Summary of considerations

Fit with Council's roles or Committee's terms of reference

The action items are of an administrative nature and support the functioning of the Committee.

Implications for Māori

There are no direct implications for Māori arising from this report.

Contribution to Annual Plan / Long term Plan / Other key strategies and policies

Action items contribute to Council's or Greater Wellington's related strategies, policies and plans to the extent identified in **Attachment 1.**

Internal consultation

There was no additional internal consultation in preparing this report and updating the action items.

Risks and impacts: legal / health and safety etc.

There are no known risks or impacts.

Attachment 1 to Report 20.86

Action items from the 13 February 2020 Environment Committee meeting

Meeting date	Action item	Status and comment
13	Strategic Priorities for the	Status
February 2020	Environment Committee – Report 20.20	Ongoing.
	Resolution	Comment
	Considers the proposed strategic priorities for the 2019- 22 triennium at a March 2020	This consideration has been scheduled for a workshop on 6 August 2020, following the Environment Committee meeting.
	workshop.	The workshop has been deferred to enable the LTP strategic priorities to be worked through with councillors first, which is occurring through a series of workshops in May and June 2020.
13	Regional water quality in the	Status
February 2020	Wellington Region	Ongoing.
	Resolution	Comment
	Requests officers to report to the next committee meeting on:	Item a was reported to the 9 April Council meeting.
	a Options for a water quality monitoring regime at Owhiro Stream/Bay, with the report to identify the likely sources of contamination	For item b, a meeting was held on 31 March 2020 between Mr Doyle, Mr Ian Reid (Chair of Owhiro Bay Residents Association), the General Manager Environment Management, the Council Chair, and Councillors Gaylor and Connelly.
	b The feasibility on effective 'real-time' public notification system for recreational users of Owhiro Bay and other recreational coastal areas in the Wellington Region	The General Manager Environment Management and the Wellington Water Chief Executive later agreed to set up a workshop with the Owhiro Bay Residents Association and Regional Public Health to respond to issues of community engagement and communication, including notification processes. This workshop will be set up once we move to Alert Level 1, and subject to Regional Public Health availability, before reporting back to the Committee.
13 5 - 1	Noted	Status
February 2020	The Committee requested that	Ongoing.
	the framework for stormwater consents be made available on	Comment
	Greater Wellington's website.	This request entails drafting text for the

Attachment 1 to Report 20.86

Action items from the 13 February 2020 Environment Committee meeting

Meeting date	Action item	Status and comment
		framework and attaching Wellington Water stormwater consents. This was unable to be completed during lockdown, but the information is currently being compiled for publication to Greater Wellington's website within the next couple of weeks.
13	Noted	Status
February 2020	The Committee requested a report, in the context of stormwater, on what we	Completed. Comment
	monitor and why. This will include any timelines for monitoring actions required through Stage One global stormwater consenting.	A report (Stormwater – regulatory framework and monitoring (Report 20.95)) was considered at Council's 9 April 2020 meeting.
13	Noted	Status
February 2020	Councillors requested that the	Completed.
	schedule of meetings for the Biodiversity Collaborative	Comment
	Working Group be circulated.	Meeting dates and some venues were circulated in the 19 March 2020 Councillor Bulletin.